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To the Members of SAMH] Holels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited

(TCrs Repor
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Raport on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of SAMH| Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited {the “Company”)
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss {including
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes fo the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory infarmation,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibitities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

 Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 41 to the financial statements, which explains the management's assessment
of going concern assumption and financial impact on account of COVID-19 pandemic situation and its
assertion that based on best estimates made by it, the Company will continue as a going concern i.e.
continue its operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise its assets, for the foreseeable
future.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

'O!.ﬁer'.'lnf:t':"r"rnat:ibn .

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors’ report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read ihe other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or ctherwise appears to be materially misstated. if,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
infarmation, we are required to repert that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Regislered Cffice:

B 5 R & Co. {a parnership firm with Regsieation Mo, BAG1223) converled into B S R & Co. LLP {a 141h Flger, Central B Wing and Nerlh C WWing, Mesco T Park 4, Mesca
Limited Liability Parnership wilh LLF Registration Mo, A&B-8181) wilh affast from Dolober 14, 2013 Cenler, Western Exomss Highway, Goregagn {East), Mumbai - 400483
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BSR&Co. LLP

independent Auditor’s Report {Continued)

SAMHI Hotels (Anmedabad) Private Limited

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are respensible for the matters stated in Section
134(5} of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, impfementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative hut to do so.

The Board of Directors is also respensible for overseeing the Company's financial repariing process.

 Auditor's Responsib

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or errer, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nof a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or errar and are considered materiai if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are alsa responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference fo financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluale the appropriataness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statemenis and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause ihe Company to cease {o continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
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Independent Auditor's Report (Condirnied)

SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statemeni that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, refated
safeguards.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Crder, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and cbtained all the information and expianations which to the best of our
knaowledge and helief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinicn, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and {oss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in eguity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the writien representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
an record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect t{o the adeguacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Campany and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of cur information and
according to the expianations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 an its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 47{v) to the financiai statemenis, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company fc or in any ather persons or entities, including foreign entities ('Intermediaries™, with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

+ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
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independent Auditor’s Report {Confinued)
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i} The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 47(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any persons or entities, including foreign entities {("Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shail:

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uliimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i} and {ii} above contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197{18) of the Act:

In our opinion and according o the information and explanations given to us, no remuneration has been
paid or payable by the Company to its directors during the current year and accordingly, the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248WAN-100022

\QMW«
Vikram Advani
Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 081765
Date: 20 September 2022 {CAl UDIN:22081765ATIEHESS7S
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Annezure & to the Independent Auditor's Baport on the Financial Slatements

of  SAMHI

31 March 2022

{Refarrod o in paragraph
Reguirements’ saction of our report of even datg)

HMotols

{Ahmadabad)

Frivate

Limited

for  the

year ended

under ‘Report on Othor Legal and Regulatory

{i} {a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including gquantiitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

{c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in a period of 3 years, In accordance with this programme, no property, plant and equipment
were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Campany is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company,
except for the following which are not held in the name of the Campany:

Description Gross Held in the Whether Period heid- Reason for
of property | carrying name of promoter, indicate range, not being
value director or where held in the
their appropriate name of the
relative or Company.
employee Also
indicate if
in dispute
Freehold Rs. Satkar Na 27 March 2006 The sale
Land- Sub | 275,000 Realties deed of land
Plot No.4 of | thousand | Pvt. Ltd. is in the
Final  Plot name of
No. 578 of Satkar
Town Realties Pvt.
Planning Ltd.,
Scheme No. erstwhile
35 {varied) name of the
of Company
Ahmedabad which  was
Situated at changed to
Mouje Royal Orchid
Chhadavad, ; Ahmedabad
Taluka City, i Private
District Limited and
Ahmedabad after that
SAMHI
Hotels
{Ahmedabad
} Private
Limitec.
Fresh
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
nf SAMHI Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year snded

31 March 2022 (Continued)

(if) (@)

(i)

(d)

(e

Description Gross Held in the Whether Period held- Reason far

of property | carrying name of promoter, indicate range, not being
value director or where held in the
their appropriate name of the
relative or Company.
employee Also
indicate if
in dispute

certificate of
incorporatio
n
conseqguent
{o change of
name dated
14 May 2010
and 16
August 2012
respectively
was  issued
by the
Regisirar of
Companies,
National
Capital
Territory  of
Gujarat

However, original title deeds of lands are under lien with bank for the loan facilities availed by
the Company. Therefore, we could not verify those title deeds and have not received
independent confirmation from bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
{including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Refer Note 47(i} to the financial statements.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory.

According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and ¢n the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanciioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from bank and on the basis of security of current
assets. As informed to us and as per the terms of sanction ietter of such limits, there is no
requirement on the Company to submit quarterly returns or statements with such bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
Page 8 of 13




BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMH! Hofels {(Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended
21 March 2022 {Continued}

@

(d)

(e

®

{iv)

guarantee or granted advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. The Company has
provided security and granted loan to company during the year, in respect of which the requisite
information is as below. The Company has not provided any security or granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to limited liabilily partnership or any other parlies during the year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans and security 1o another entity as below:

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans {Rs. Advances in
{Rs. in in ‘000) nature of loans
000}
Aggregate amount during | - 1,600,000 132,500 -
the year

Helding Company*
(SAMH! Hotets Limited)

Balance outstanding as | - 750,000 132,500 -
at balance sheet date
Holding Company*
{SAMH! Hotels Limited)

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
canducted by us, in aur opinion the security given during the year and the terms and conditicns
of the grant of loans provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. However, no repayments of receipts were
due during the year. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to
any party during the year.

According fo the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted falling due during the year, which has
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to seftle the overdues of existing loans given
to same parties,

According to the information and exptanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security to any of the parties covered under section 185 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185 are not applicable
to the Company. The Company has complied with section 186(1} of the Companies Act, 2013.
According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 188 {except
for sub-section (1) of the Section 186) of the Companies Act, 2013 are net applicable to the
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Siatements
of SAMHI Hotels {(Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Confinued)

Company since the Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities.

{v} The Company has nof accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v} of the Order is not applicable.

{vi) According to the information and explanations given ta us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi} of the Crder is not applicable.

fvii) (@ The Company does not have liahility in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and

Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has heen
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax (GST7),
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, income-Tax, Cess or ather statutory dues have
generally been regularly depaosited with the appropriate authorities, though there have been
slight delays in a few cases of Goods and Service Tax {GSTY), Provident fund, Employees State
Insurance, Professional Tax and Labour Welfare Fund. Further in respect of Income-Tax, the
Company has been irregular in depositing the sum due throughout the year and the amount
involved is Rs. 40,104 thousands.

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a pericd of more than six months from the date they
became payable, except as menticned below:

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount | Period to Due date Date cf
statute dues {Rs. in which the payment
'000) amount
relates
The Provident 285 March 15 April 2019 | Not yet paid
Employees’ Fund 2019
Provident {Additional
Fund and | liability due to
Miscellansous | Supreme
Provisions Court)
Act, 1852 Refer Note 35
Bombay Property tax 2,182 FY 2019- | 30 April 2018 | Not yet paid
provinciat 20
Municipal
corporations
Act, 1949
Bombay Property tax 2181 Fy 2020- 30 April 2020 | Nof yet paid
provincial 21 ;
Municipal
corporations
Act, 1949
Bombay Property tax 1,800 FY 2021- | 30 Aprit 2021 | Not yet paid
Page 8 of 13
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Annexurs A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI Hoteis {Ahmeaedabad) Private Linited  for  the year ended

31 March 2022 (Continged)

D)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(o)

{©)

{d)

X

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount | Period to | Due date Date of
statute dues {Rs. in which the | payment
‘0003 amount
relates
provincial : 22
Municipal
carporations
Act, 1949
Central Interest 302 December | # Not yet paid
: Goods  and | liability on 2017 to
Services Tax | Goods  and August
Act, 2017 and | Services Tax 2021
State Goods
and Services
Tax Act, 2017

#These amounts have fallen due at various points of time during the previous and current year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Value added tax which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum Remarks
statute the dues (Rs.in ‘000}) which the where , if any
amount dispute is
relates pending
Value Added | VAT liability 1,708 FY 2014-15 Dy. State Tax | NA
Tax Act, 2003 Commissione
r
Ahmedabad

According to the information and explanations given to us and eon the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
income Tax Act, 1861 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. As at 31 March 2022, the
Company alse has interest free loan amounting to Rs. 392,693 thousands {nominal amaount of
Rs. 3,750 thousands) from the holding company, repayable at the option of the Company and
accordingly classified as "Other equity. As this loan is repayable at the option of the Company,
there has been no default in repayment thereof.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpese for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
Page 9 of 13
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Annexure A to ihe Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Staloments
of SANMMH Hotels {(Abmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022 {(Confinued)

(€)

U

{xi) (a)

(xii)

(xiii}

{xiv) (a)

(xv}

(xvi) (a)

(0

(©

(d)

used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does rot hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingly, clause 3(ix){g) is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022, Accordingly, clause 3(ix}{f) is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x}a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
30 (1) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
infarmation and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section {12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a whally owned subsidiary and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Sectien 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided fo us and cur audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an inlernal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any nen-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-tA of the Reserve Bank of india
Act, 1834, Accordingly, clause 3{xvi){a) of the Crder is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 Accordingly, clause 3{xvi}(b) of the Crder is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi){c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.
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Annexura & o the Independent Audiiors Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMH! Hotels {Abhmedabad) Private Limited for the ysar ended
31 Mavch 2022 (Conlinued)

(xvii} The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 382,012 in the current financial year and Rs.
500,406 in the immediaiely preceding financial year.

{xviii} There has been no resignation of the statutory auditers during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviiiy of the Order is not applicabie.

fxix) We draw attention to Note 41 to the financial statements which explains that the Company has
incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at 31 March
2022, Further, it explains the management's assessment of going concern assumption and
financial impact on account of COVID-12 pandemic situation and its asseriion that based on
best estimates made by it, the Company will continue as a going concern .e. continue its
operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise its assets, for the foreseeable
fuiure.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on the
basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporiing is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falting due within a period of one year from the batance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due,

(xx) The reguirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3{xx){a) and 3{xx}{b} of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248WW-100022

E

Yo

o

Vikram Advani

Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 081785
Date: 20 September 2022 ICAl UDIN:22091765ATIEHES978
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Annexure B {o the independent Audior's Repart on the financial statements
of SAMHI Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limied for the year ended
31 March 2022

Report on the intermal financial controls with reference o the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause () of Sub-section I of Saction 143 of the Act

{Referred 1o in paragraph 2{8KF under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SAMHI Hoiels
{Ahmedabad) Private Limited {"the Company™) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note").

anagement’s and Board of Directors’ Responsikilities for Internal Financial Controts
The Company’'s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internat financial controls that were aperating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preventicn
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

; Auditor's Rgsppl_'_l;s_i_bilit__y _

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obfain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference fo financial
statements were established and maintained and if such conirols operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of internal Fl'na_nciai Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
Page 12 of 13



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B o the independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements
of SAMHI Hotels {(Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended
3 March 2022 (Contined}

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financiai reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for exiernal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain {o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial staiements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being madse only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the cempany; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautherised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Bacause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference toc financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248WAV-100022

I‘a & gghf':if

Vikram Advani

Fariner
Place: New Detlhi Membership No.: 091765
Date: 20 September 2022 ICAl UDIN: 22091765ATIEHES978
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o4 ML Gotels (Ahmedabad) Privaie Limited
Balanece Sheet as at 31 Kavreh piizy
FAN cinounts e iit Indiour Rupees {'000), witlesy othenvise stated)

ASSETS

Mop-curyenl assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right to use assel

Investment property

Infangible assels

Financial assets

Others

Inceme lax assets (nef)

Other nuin-curtent assets
Taial non-current assets

Current nssets
[nventories
Financial assels
Trade receivables
C'ash and cash equivalents
Loans
Oithers
Other cuirent assets
Total carrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Eguiky share capital
Other cquily
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Bomrowings
Lease liabililies
Others
Provisions
Other non-current liabilitics
Tetal non- current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
 total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and emnall enterprises

Leasc liabilitles
Others
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AN LIABILITIES

The notes from Note 1 to Notc 49 [orm an integral part of these {iancial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLF

Chartered Acoountants
1CAL Firm Registration Mo 101248 W/ W-100022

Vikram Advani
Partner
Membership No.: 091765

Place: New Delthi
Date: 20 September 2022

1%
»
LS
7?) f@"ﬁ e
1 RajatMehra
Direcior

As at As at
MNote 31 March 2022 31 hiarch 2021
3 2,862,313 3,026,603
3 105,581 i07,762
3 148,164 152,245
4 7,596 10,855
5 10,57 44,071
6 20,011 %,101
8 2,830 3,400
3,178,076 3,353,037
9 4277 5,529
10 53,861 51,767
11 109,607 62,159
11a 134,662 -
12 1,257 25,046
13 53,565 31,093
387,229 175,594
3,565,305 3,528,631
14 21,649 21,64%
15 {1,007,352) {437.421)
(985,703) (415,772)
16 3,478,285 3,442,167
17 8,603 9,122
18 34 842 311,230
19 2,501 2,840
20 59,963 66,304
3,584,194 3,551,663
A | 689,860 116,443
22
3,764 2,355
192,978 164,434
23 793 -
24 14,529 33,927
25 43,265 74,179
26 1,625 1,402
966,514 392,740
4,551,008 3,944,403
3,565,303 3,528,631

Frr and on behalf of Board ot Directors of
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

DIM: N681308]

Place: Gurugram
Date: 20 September 2022

Tlace: Gorugran
Date; 20 Sepiember 2022



SAMEL Hotels (Abmedabad) Private Limited
Stziement of Prolit and Loss for the year ended 31 Mavel 2022
(Al amounts are in Indion Rupees (000}, uniess athervise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Nale 31 Mareh 2022 31 Mayeh 2021
income
Revenue from operations 27 585,136 297,737
Other income 28 13,178 19,309
Taotal income 598,314 317,046
Expenses
Cost of matenials consumed 29 63,172 31,053
Employee benefits expense 30 105,519 05,081
(Other expenses 33 290,330 227463
459,021 353,597
Profit/(Loss) before finance cust, depreciation, amertisation and tax 139,293 (36,551)
Finance costs 31 536,771 474,377
Depreciation and amertisation expense 32 172,801 185,462
709,572 659,839

Loss before tax {570,279 (696,390)
Tax expense 7

Current tax - -

Deferred tax - -
Loss for the year (570,279) {696,390)
Other Comprehensive Income
Trems thar will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
- Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligations 346 (376)
- Income tax relating to iterns mentioned above - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax 346 (376)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period (569,933} (696,766)
Earnings per equity share 34
Nominal value of share INR 10 [previous year INR 10]
Basic (26.34) (32.17)
Diluted {26.34} {32.17)

The notes from Note 1 to Note 49 form an inlegral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered dccountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101 248W/W-100022

Vikram Advani m e T

Partner
Membership No.: 081765

Placc: New Dethi
Drate: 20 September 2022

Farand on behalf of Board of Directors of

SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limite

Director
DIN: 06813081

Place: Gurugram
Date: 20 September 2022

DIN: 03563467

Place: Gurugram
Date; 20 September 2022



SANMHI Hetels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(AN amounts are in [ndian Rupees (000), unless otheriise stated)

A. Cash Mow fram operating activities
Lass before tax
Adjustments:
Drepreciation and amertisation
Amortisation of income reccived in advance
Loss on foreign exchange difference
Rental income
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back
Provision for bad and doubtin! debts
Finance casts
Leage Income
Rent expense on lease
interesi incame
Unwinding of discount on security deposit
Government grant written off
Operaiing profit before working capital changes
Decreass in inventories
{Increase) / decrease in frade receivables
Decrease in other financial assets
(Tncrease) / decrease in other assets
tncrease in brade payables
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities
Increase f (decrease] in provisions
Increase f (decrease) in wher fnanceal liabglines
Cash generated by sperations
Tncome taxes (paid) / refunded - net
Net cash provided/ (used) by operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Loan given to holding company
Bank deposits matured
Bank deposits made
Interest received
Mct cash (used in} f provided by investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activitics
Proceeds from non-current borrowings

Proceeds from cwrent borrowings (net)
Repayment of non-current borrowings

Loan from Helding Company repaid - recognised directly in other equity

Finance costs paid
Payment of Leas: liahility
Repiyment of current borrewings
Net cash provided/ {wsed) by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents {A+B4C)
Cash and cash equivatents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year
Notes to cash [ow staterment

i. Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Halances with banks on current account
Deposit accounts (wilh original maturity of 3 months or less)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Far the year ended
3 March 2021

(570,279 (696,380}
172,801 175,462
{3,203) -
3,379 _
(3,657) -
- (2,745}
181 1,267
536,771 474,377
{2,291) (3,109}
- 1,564
{3,800} (3,917
(197) {175)
714 18,255
130,389 (25,407}
1,252 2,458
(2,275) 47,578
9,106 15,435
(21,872) 8,328
26,576 48,878
(30,365) 19,358
230 (2417
{6,663) 2,071
106,378 116,322
(11,910 20,077
94,468 136,399
(5,523} (2071}
{132,260} -
360,957 430,865
{361,000} (370,853
1,398 4,735
{136,428) 62,676
777,965 161,400
2,558 -
(205,342) {13,386}
- {20,000
{418,373) {186,520}
{725) -
(66,675} (112,836
890,408 {171,342)
47,448 27.733
62,159 34,426
109,607 62,159
As at Asat

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

320 434
105,273 31,743
4,014 29,982
109,607 62,159




SANHI Hetels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited

Staternent of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022
(Al amounts are i fndics Rupees (000), unless othervise stafed)

if. Movernent in linancial liahilities

Ason 1 April 2021
Cash flows (net)
Finance cost cxpense
Finance cost patd

Current maturities of long term borrowings

As on 31 March 2022

Asatl April 2020
Cash flows {net)
Finance cost expense
Finance ¢ost paid

Current maturitics of long term bomrowings

Ay on 31 NMarch 2421

Non-current Current borrowings Lease liabilities Total
borrowings *
3,453,573 F16,443 9,122 3,579,138
572,623 64,117 - 508,506
522,195 10,071 999 533,263
(408,302) {14,071} (725) {419,098)
__1637,334} 637,534 - -
3,502,555 689.860 2,396 4.201.811
3,092,271 162,604 - 3,254,875
148,014 (112,836) 8,844 44,022
448,397 18,086 968 457,451
(168,434) {18,086) {690} (187,210
(66,675 66,675 - -
3,453,573 116,443 9,122 3,579,138

* Includes current portion of interest acerued but not due on borrowings (refer note 16 and note 24}

jii. The Statament of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with the Indirect Methed' as set out in the Ind AS 7 on "Statement of Cash Flows".

The notes from Note 1 to Note 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date atlached

Ffor BSR & Co. LLFP
Chartered decountanis
ICAl Firm Begistration No.: 101 248WAW-100022

b

Vikram Advaniﬂ
Bartner
Membership No.: 091765

Place; New Delhi
Date: 20 September 2022

Ll

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

/4

Ead

el
e j’*ffu &

Directar
DIN: GaR13081

Place; Gurugram
Date: 20 September 2022

Gyang Das
Direcror
DIM: 03563467

Place: Gurugram
Date: 20 Seprember 2032
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SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial siatements for the year cnded 31 March 2022
(A1 amounts ave in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

i.1 Corporate ioformation

SAMHT Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a compaily domiciled in India, The
Company was incorporated in India on 1 February 2005 as per the provisions of Indian Companies Act and
is limited by shares.

The Company is a privately held hotel development and investmenl company with focus on operating
internationally branded hotels across key cities in the Indian sub-continent.

Presently, the Company has two holels under it (Four Points by Sheraton, Ahmedabad and Sheraton,
Hyderabad) which are operational.

1.2 Basis of preparation

A, Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013, (the *Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act. Also refer note 41 for going concern basis
of accounting used by the management,

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 20 September
2022,

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest thousands, nnless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items: .

| Items Measurement Basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair Value

D. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about
the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may require material adjustment to the carrying
valne of assets or liabilities affected in future periods,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing hasis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.



SAMIT Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private ELimiied
Motes to ihe financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

B

jif)

iv)

v)

The following are the significant areas of estimation uncertainty and crilical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements:

Leases

Critical judgements in determining the lease period:

nd AS 116 required lessces to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use ot such option is reasonably certain. The Company
makes an assessment on the expected lease term on 2 lease-by-lease basis and there by assesses whether i
is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating
the leage term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold mmprovements undertaken
over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset
to the Company’s operations taking into account the Tocation of the underlying asset and the availability of
suitable alternatives, The lease term in the future possible periods is reassessed to cnsure that the lease term
reflects the curent economic circumstances.

Critical judgements in determining the discount rate:
The discount rate is generally based on the ineremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated
or for the portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements:

Certain financial instruments are valued on the basis of valuation techniques that feature one or more
significant market inputs that are unobservable, and for them the measurement of fair value is more
judgmental. An instrument in its entirety is classified as valued using significant unobservable inputs if, in
the opinion of management, a significant proportion of the instrument’s inception profit or greater than 5%
of the instruvnent’s valuation is driven by anobservable inputs. ‘Uncbservable’ in this context means that
there is little or no current market data available from which to determine the price at which an amm’s length
transaction would be likely to oceur.

Useful lives, recoverable amounts and impairment of property, plant and equipment

The estimated useful lives and recoverable arnounts of property, plant and equipment are based on estimates
and assumptions regarding the expected market outlock, expected future cash flows, obsolescence, demand,
competition, and known technological advances. The company reviews the useful lives and recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting date.

Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absences obligation) are determined using
actuarial valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities invelved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurcment of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices in
active markels are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are
raken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is



S4lvIHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes fo the financial statements for the year ended 31 ¥arch 2§22
(4l amounts are in Indian Rupees (‘000), unless otherwise staled)

vi)

required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instraments. Also, refer note 38 for further disclosures.

Recognition of Deferred Tax assets/liabilities

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used. A deferred tax asset
is recognised for unused tax losses, deductible temporary differences and MAT credif available, to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available agamst which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduccd to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cwrent / non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following eriteria:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating
cycle.

- it is beld primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

-it is cash or cash cquivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following critena:

- it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is due to be seifled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All
other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current, Deferred tax assets and liabilities (it any) are classified
as non-current assets and labilities.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months
for the purpose of current/non-current classification of asscts and liabilities.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurerment of fair values, for



SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Motes to the nancial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise siated)

I)

both financial and nan-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework
with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility for overseeing
all significant fair value measurcments, including Level 3 fair values, and reports direcily to the Holding
Company’s chief financial officer.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information
is used to measure fair values then the finance leam assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to
support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as tar as
possible, Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs nsed
in the valuation techniques as follows:

» Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

s Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indireclly (i.e. derived from prices).

s Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair valuc of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categerized in ifs entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 38.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing costs
if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the assct to its working condition
for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal
Subscquent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only
ifitis probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
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All other expenses on cxisting property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or
loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (detcrmined by the
management based on technical estimates), Further, leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of lease
term. and their useful lives. The assets’ residual values and useful lives arc reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of cach reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized depreciable amount
is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ {disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis 1.e. from/ (up to) the date on which the
asset is ready for use/ {disposed off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of asscts is as follows:

Asset Category* Useful Life (years) | Uscful life as per
Schedule IT

Building 15-60 60
Computers and accessories 3-6 3-6

Plant and machinery 5-25 15

Furniture and fixtures 5-8 10

Vehicles 8 g

Office equipment 5-10 5 1

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined that
the useful lives as given above best represent the period ever which management expects to use these assets.
Hence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are different from the useful
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Infangible assefs

Recognition and measuyement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognifion,

an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if
any.

Subscquent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific
asset to which it relates.
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Amortisation

Intangible assets of the Campany represent computer software and are amortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life (at present three to ten years) or the temure of the respective software
license, whichever is lower. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at
cach financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significanily different from previous
estimates, the amortization period 18 changed accordingly. '

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss when
the assct is derecognized.

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recogmiscd when they are criginated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument,

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assels

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
. arnortised cost;

- FVQCI — debt investment;

- FVOCI - equity investment; or

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, exccpt if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount ouistanding.

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL.

— the asset is held within a business model whosc objective is achieved by both collecting contractnal cash
flows and selling financial assets; and
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— the coniractual terms of the financial asscl give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FYOCI as described above are meagured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative tinancial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrcvocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accourting mismatch that would
otherwisc arise.

Financial assets: Business model ussessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset 13 held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and informatien 1s provided
to management, for instance the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio, frequency, vohune and fiming
of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales
activity.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial agset on initial
recognition, ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and forthe cred it nsk
associated with the principal amount cutstanding during a particular period of time and  for other basic
lending risks and costs {e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes asscssing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

~ contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate featurcs;

- prepayment and extension features;

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measurcd at fair value, Net gains and losses,
agsets at including any interest or dividend income, arc recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

Financial asscts | 1hese assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
at amortised cost | effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on dcrecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
at FVOCI under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
QCI are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Equity These assets are subsequently measurcd at fair value. Dividends are
investments recogniscd as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
at FVOCI a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Pinancial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial hability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial Labilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also reco gnised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to recejve lhe contractual cash flows in a transaction  in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset arc transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain conirol of the financial asset.

If the Company enters info transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derccognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
Or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms arc substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
cxtinguished and the new financial lability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet wher,
and only when, the Company currently has a legaily enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously. -

Compound financial instruments

Compound financia) instruments issued by the Company comprise compulsorily convertibie preference
shares denominated in INR that can be converted to equity sharcs at the option of the holder, when the
number of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair value.
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The Yability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at the fair value of a
similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is initially recognised
at the difference between the fair value of the compound financia! instrument as a whole and the fair value
of the liability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to their imtial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of 2 compound financial
instrument is not remeasured subsequently,

Interest related to the financial Lability is recognised in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for inclusion in the
cost of an asset). In case of conversion at maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain
or loss is recognised.

Inferest fiee loans

The Company has obtained interest free loan from its holding company. Such mterest free loans are
measured at fair vatues determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash
flows and discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such loans.
The difference between the ransaction price and the fair value of such loans have been recognised as equity
component in the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at amortised costs
and interest expense is recognised using effective interest rate method. On modification in the terms of such
loans wherein they became repayable at the option of the borrower resulting in it becoming perpetual debt
such loans including accrued interest up to the date of modification have been treated as other equity,

Concessional overdraft facility

The Company has availed overdraft facility from banks at an interest rate lower than the market rate,
because its holding company has pledged fixed deposits with the banks for this overdraft facility. This
difference between the interest rate charged by the bank and market rate is treated as deemed cquity
provided by the holding company, with a corresponding debit to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Modification of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets:

If the terms of 4 financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the medified
agset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to
cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial
asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
moadification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.
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Financial Liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial lability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised al fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

A. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expectcd credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost require
impairment to be recognised. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or morc events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

_the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

. it is probablc that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficuities.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses i.e, bank balances for which credit risk (i.e.
the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the mstrument
is less than 12 months}.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportabie
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and mformed credit
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assessment and including forward-locking information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when;
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due.

Measurement of expecied credif losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted cstimate of credit Josses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to Tcceive).

As a practical expcdient, the Company uses 2 provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial asscts measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets,

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is writicn off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an
asset (or cash generating unit) cxceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
asset’s (or cash gencrating unit’s) net selling price and value in use. In assessing valuc in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised,

Inventories

Inventories which comprise stock of food and beverage (including liquor) and stores and spares are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable valuc. Cost includes all expenses incurred in bringing the inventory
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to their present location and condition and is determined on a first in first out ("FIFO") basis. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs lo make the sale.

Governnment grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable agsurance that (1) the
Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be received.

Export Promotion Capital Goods scheme
The grant or subsidy received to compensate the import cost of assets, subject to an export obligation is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in ratio of fulfilment of associated export obligations.

Service Exports from India scheme (SEIS)

The scheme entitles the Company to receive SEIS licenses basis the annual earnings in foreign currency.
These licenses can be utilised by the Company or sold in the market. The grant is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis af rcalizable value.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligalion as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be madc of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-1ax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability, The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Provisions
are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates,

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of cne or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs arc interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by the Company
in conmection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable te acquisition and/or
construction of those tangible fixed assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use are capitalised. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the period during
which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than temporary interruption. Other
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borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

1) Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as
short-term employee bencfits. These benefits include salaries and wages, shori-term bonus and ex-gratia.
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognised as an expense as the related sexvice is rendered by employees,

{b) Posi-employment benefits

()

Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Employee State Insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee state
insurance arc defined confribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards
thesc schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the Profit or loss during the
period in which the employee renders the rclated service. If the contribution already paid is less than the
contribution payabie to the scheme for service received before the balance shect date, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess
is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving risc to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market yields on
government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to the terms of
related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive mcome and are never
reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past service cost,

Other long-term employee benefit obligations — Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it
in future service petiods or reccive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
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employees render the related service and are also not expected lo be utilized wholly within twelve months
after the end of such period, the benefit is classificd as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records
an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of experience adjustmenis and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

11} Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts

Revenue from hotel operations

Room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation services and properiy management services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, salc of food and beverages, property management services, recreation and other
services relating to hotel aperations, Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale of food
and beverages.

Space rentals

Space rental income comprises amount earned for use of hotel premises space by other parties. The income
is recognised when services are rendered as per the terms of the contract and no significant uncertainty
exists regarding the collection of the consideration.

12} Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment
is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futurc cash payments or receipts
through the expected lifc of the financial insfrument to:

. the gross carying amount of the financial asset; or
. the amortised cost of the financial ligbility.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is
no longer credit-impaircd, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
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13} Accounting for Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated info the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dafes of the transactions. Foreign cxchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and [rom the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit or
loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or loss on
a et basis.

i4) Income Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax compriscs the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of  current tax reflects
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering  the uncertainty, if any, related
to income taxes. Itis measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and cuirent tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability en a net basis or
simultaneously.

Peferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recognised for temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of
the transaction,

Deferred tax asscts are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred
tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differcnces or there is convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be tealised.
Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/
reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be
realised.
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Deferred tax is measured af the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. '

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that wounld follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities

and assets and Company intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or such tax assets and
liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

18) Segment reporiing

Operating scgments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operaling decision maker (CODM).

Identification of segments:

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identificd on the basis of information reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources to the
segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages
in business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs cxpenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components.

16) Leases

Ministry of Corporate affairs (“MCA”) through companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2019 and Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Sccond Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS
116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets
out the principles, for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessors
and lessees. It introduces a single, on- balance sheet leases accounting model for leases.

Company as a Lessee

On inception of a contract, the Company (as a lessee) assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract is or
contains a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether; (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company
has substantially ail of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (ii1)
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases,
the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Leasc contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates payments in the
coniract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices and applies the
lease accounting model only to lease components.



5ARMAL Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Linvited
Motes to the financial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All cinounts are in Indiarn Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

The right-of-use assets arc initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initia! amount of the lease
liability adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or hefore the copunencement date,
any asset restoration obligation, and less any lease incentives reccived. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for any re-
measurement of lease liabilities. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
assets or renewal of the leases at the end of the lease term, recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated to
a residual value over the shorter of their estimated useful life or lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed” payments) and variable
Jease payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. “In-substance fixed’
payments are payments that may, in form, contain variability but that, in substance, are unavoidable. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement datc if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily detcrminable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise and excludes the effect of early termination options where the Company is not reasonably certain
that it will exercise the option. Minimum lease payments include the cost of a purchase option if the
Company is reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset atter the lease term.

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option and any
leage modification.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable leases which
guarantee a minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the guaranteed amount is considered to be an ‘in-
substance fixed” lease payment and included in the initial calculation of the lease liability. Payments which
are ‘in-substance fixed’ are charged against the lease liability,

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

Company as a Lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a
finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a
straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the
lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of retumn on the lessor's net investment n
the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lcase, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 1135 Revemue
from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.



SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
MNotes to the financial statements for the year caded 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise staled)

17} Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period atiributable to
equily shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the peried are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti - dilutive,

18) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
- deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
- changes in value.

19) Investment property
Investment property consists of commercial property principally held to earn rental income.

Recognition and measurement

Property that is held either to earn rental income or capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupled by
the Company, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditure and disposal

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future
ecenomic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an
investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Any gain or loss from disposal of an investment property is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the management based on technical estimates).
Further, leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of lease term and their useful lives. The assets’
residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusied if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
In case of a revision, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (upto) the date on which the
asset is ready Tor use/ (disposed off).

Asset Category Useful Life Useful life as
{years) per Schedule II
Bulding 60 &0
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SardHT Horeis (alunedshad) Private Limiled
Motes 1o the linaRecin) stukements for the year ended 31 Mujeb 2022
{etit emounis are i Indiqn Rupees {000, wiless athervise ytated)

5 Non-current financial assets ~ Others
(Unsecured considered good)
Bank deposits dug 1o mature afler 12 months from the reperting date™ #

Lease recaivable
Security depasits

# includes interest acerued on fixed depasits amaunting to INR 6 (3] March 2021 - INR 5)
* Inclutles deposits under lien amounting ta TNR 821 (31 March 2021 - INR. 848)
6  [neome tax asscts (net)

‘Tax dedueted at source

Asat
31 March 2022

As al
31 March 2021

851 848

9,345 23,403
20,335 12,820
30,571 44,071
20,011 8101
20,811 8,191




SAMEI Holels (Ahnedabad) £rivate Liwdicd
Modes Lo the financial statemenis for the year ended 31 Maych 2022
(A amcwmes are Jo Jodios Rupees [0G) rtless otharwise siored)

7 lncometay Fur the yeor ended  For the year ended

A The major coemponents of incoine 3% expense ! (incone} are

Hecognised in profit or loss
Current tax
Deferred tax

Recognised in Other comprehensive ineome
Re-measurement gain'(loss} on defined benefil obligations

31 Mareh 2022

31 March 2021

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Before lax . {376} (376)

After tax (376} {376}
Recognised divectly in other equicy
Liability component of Interest free loan from Holding Company

Before tax - (20,000

After tax - (20,000}
B. Reconciliation of efTective {ax rafe {fax cxpense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company’s domestic tas rate}

Fur the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
FPercentage Amaount Percentape Amannt
Lass before tax (570,279) (6496,390)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 25.17 (143,522) 2507 {175,260}
Effect of:
Non recognition of deferred taxes an lemporary differences (2227 126,593 {2221} 154,650
Mon.deductible differences (0.3%) 2,209 3.7%) 26,424
Others 230 14,320 0.33 {5,519
Effective 1ax rale - - - -
C. Deferred tax assels / liabilities
K As at As at

Deferred tax assets

31 March 2032

31 March 2021

Unabsorbed business loss and depreciation 733,945 649,974
Disallowance w/s 438 of Tncome-tax Act, 194] 139,593 #6553
Provision for employee benefits 20 4,208
I.oss altowance for doubtful debts 2,294 1,248
Lease Liability 2,363 2294
680,311 745,279
Dieferred tax liabilitles
Praperty, plant and ¢quipment, Capital work-in-progress and Intangible assets 289,012 277,400
Lease recelvable 5,500 8,963
294,502 136,263
Met deferred tax assct/ (Habilitics)* 586,009 459,016

Delerred tax assel { {liabilily) recognised

*4s sl year eod, the Company bas significant unabsorbed depreciation and cammy forward business Josses as per Income Tax Act, 1961, Tn view of absence of reasonable
certainty of sufficient future taxable profits, deferred tax assets has been recognised to the extent of defcrred tax Habilitics only.

D, Movement in temporary differences
31 March 2022

Balunce as at Movemeni Recognlsed Recognised Balance a5 at
Particulars 1 Aprit 2011 during 2021-22 | io equity during | in OCI during 31 March 2022
2021-22 2021-22
Property, plant and squipment, Iotangihle assets and Investment Property {277,400) {11,612} - - (289,012}
Unabsarbed business loss and depreciation 640,574 83,573 - - 713,940
Lease receivable (5,363) 2973 - - {5,450}
Leuse Liability 2,296 59 - - 2,363
Disallowance w's 43B of Income-tax Act, 1961 B6,533 53,040 - - 139,593
Provision for doubtful debts 3,248 44 - - 2,294
Trovision for employes benefits 4,208 {1,498} - - 2,710
Total 458,016 126,993 - - 586,009




54WHT Hatels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Mates to the inarcial statements for the year ended 31 ¥arch 2022
{4 amounnts arve in indian Knpees (*O00), wiless otherwise steted)

31 March 2021

Balance as at Movement Recognised in | Recognised in OCH Balance as at F
Particulars 1 April 2020 | doring 2020-21 | equity during during 2020-21 31 March 2821
2020-21
Property, plant and equipment, Intaugibie assets and Luvestiment Property - (277 400}
(265,513) (11,387)
Unabsorbed business loss and depreciation 507,964 142,010 - £45,0°74
Lease receivahls {1t 4dt) 2,574 - (8,863}
Lease Liability - 2,294 - 2,286
Disallowance w's 438 of Income-tax Act, 196] 66,305 19,748 - 86,553
Provision for doubtfinl debig 930 318 - 2,248
Provision for employee benefity 4,717 {509 - 4,208
Total 304,461 154,554 - 458,016
E. Tax Losses carried forward
Tax losses for which no deffered rax assel wag recognised with expiry date as follows
As At
31 Merch 2022
Amount Expiry Date
(Financial Year)
Business loss 59.59] 2022-23
Business Joss 73,877 2023-24
Guginess loss 118,158 024-25
Business loss 77,249 2025-26
Business loss 38,7193 2026-27
Business loss 232,962 2028-39
Business loss 283,153 2029-30
Unabsorbed depreciation 2,122,407 Never Expirc
As at
31 March 2022
Amonnt Expiry Dafe
(Finanelal Year)

Business lass 15,204 2020-21
Business loss 20,303 2021-22
Business loss 5%9.59) 2022-23
Business lozs 73,877 2023-24
Business loss [18,168 2024-25
Business lass 87,249 2526
Business loss 38,793 2026-27
Business loss 316,904 2028-29
Unabsurhed deprecialion 1,698,335 Never Expire




SAMHI Hotels {Akmnedabhad} Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 barch 2022
sl weenns ave in fndfan Rupees (0008, wilesy otherive stated)

i

10

Other non-current assets A4 at Asal
(Unveeured considered good, wnless stuted offiervise) 31 March 31 March
022 2021
Prepaid expenses 200 200
Taxes paid vader appeal (Refer note 33) 1,708 1,708
Capital advances 92 532
2,830 3,400
Inventories
fealied at the fower of cost and net realisable velte)
Food and beverages 4,277 5,528
4,277 5,529
Current finanetal assets - Trade receivables As at As at
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
Unsecured, cunsidered pood 53,861 1,767
Unsecured, considered doubiful 9115 8,034
62,976 60,701
Lass allowance for expected credil foss {9.115) (8,234)
53,861 51,767
Trade receivable apeing schedule
As al 31 March 2822
Ouistanding for following periods from due date of Erunsaction
Partictlars Less than 6 | 6 months - 1 1-2 years | 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year years
{i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered guod 16,883 1,536 3,123 1,330 989 53,861
{ii} Undispured Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - 181 844 8.000 9,115
As at 31 March 2021
Quistanding for fullowing periods from due daie ol transaciion
Particulars Less than 6 | 6 months - | 1-2years | 2-3 years More than 3 Taotal
months year years
{1) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 36,754 6,127 5,156 3,087 643 51,767
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — eredil impaired - - 844 2,520 3,570 8,934




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Motes to the financial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts mee in fndian Rupees ('000), unless othenvise stated)

1 Current financial assets - Cash and «ash equivalents Asat As ut
31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Balances with banks
- QR CLITEnt dccounts 105,273 31,743
- on deposit accounts (with edginal matwrity of 3 menths or less) # 4.014 29,982
Cash on hand 320 434
109,607 62,159
# Includes interest accrued on [xed deposits amouating to TNR 6 (31 March 2021 - INR 1)
Ila  Cerrent financial assets - Loans As af As at
31 March 2022 31 March 202]
Loan to holding company # 134,662 -
134,662 B
# During the year company has given unsecured loan to its holding company for 12 months carring interest rate of 13% per atnum.
12 Current financial assets - Others Ay at As at
33 March 2022 31 March 2021
Security deposits 1,117 569
Unbilled revenue* 16,082 4,117
Government grant # - 8,547
Lease receivable 14,058 11,813
31,257 25,046
# Met of advance from customers of INR 20,423 (31 March 2021 - INR 6,590)
# During the year, the Company has recognised income of Nil (31 March 2021 — TNR 128) and recoverable balance of Wil (31 March 2021 — TNR 8,547) as
at the balance sheet date. During the year,the company has written off government prant to INR 714 {31 March 202] - INR 5,698).
13 Other corrent assets As at Asal
31 March 20622 31 March 2021
Slaff advance 360 117
Asdvance to suppliers 2,131 4,967
Balance with statutory anthorities 7,512 12,11
Oither advances 31,798 -
Prepaid expenses 11,764 13,692

53,565 31,083




SARAITE Tiotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 ¥arch 2022
A emawnts are in Indian Rupees (000), unless otherwise stated)
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Ctler equity

Equity component of inferest free loans from Holding company
Equity component of Compound financial instrument
Securities preminm

Retained eamings

Equity component of concessienal overdraft faclility

a)} Equity component of interest free loans fram Holding company
Balance at the beginning of the vear

Add : Additions made during the year

Less : Repayments during the year

Balance at the end of the year

A5 at
31 March 2022

As at
31 darch 2021

392,693 192,691
63,000 63,000
1,397,552 1,397,552
(2,865,493) {2,295,560)
4,806 4,896
(1,007,352) (437,421)
392,693 412,693

. (20,000)
392,693 392,693

This represents the equity component of the {ntevest free loans received from SAMHI Hotels Limited, the Holding Company. Terms of unsecured

loan from Holding Company have been medified w.e.f 30 September 2018 which are as below:

- Loan to be considered as perpetual debt
- Nl rate of interest
- Repavable at the option of the borrower

‘As per the amendced terms, entire lizbility portion including interest cutstanding as on 30 Seplember 2018 has been transfereed to other equity
based on the principals of Ind AS. The comesponding deferred tax impact op such luans has also been adjusted through other equity.

b) Equity component of Compound financial insérument
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

This represents [he equily compuncol of compound financial instruments {0.00§% Compulsorily convertible preference shares of INR. 10 each)

) Securities premiom
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

63,000 63,000
63,000 63,000
1,397,552 1,397,552
1,397,552 1,397,552

Securities premium is nsed to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act 2013,

&) Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Profit / (Loss) for the vear

Transferred from other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

Retained earnings represent the amount of accurmulated profits/(losses) of the Company.

¢) Other comprehensive income - Remeasurements of defined benefit Lizbility / asset
Ralance at the beginning of the year

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability / asset

Transferred to retained eamings

Balance at the end of the year

Remeasurements of defined benefit linbility {asset) comprises actuarial gains and losses.

f) Equity component of concessional overdrafi Taclility
Balance at the beginning of the year
Batance at the end of the year

(2,295,560) (1,598,794)
(570,279) (656,350)
346 (376)
(2,865,493) (2,205 560)
346 (378)

(346) 376
4,896 4,896
4,856 4,896




SAMHI Hotels (Abmedabad) Private Limited
Motes {o the financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2032
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees {'000), upless otherwise stated)

Muovement of Interest free fvans from Holding Company

Total proceeds

Less: Equity component

Liabilily component

Add: Loss on repayment of loan to holding company before maturity
Add: Interest expense accretion

Closing balance of liability cormponent

Eauitly component

Less: Repuyments till date
Less: Tax impact

Equity component {net of tax)

23,750 23,750
(575,487) (575,487
(551,737) (551,737)
524,076 524,076
27 661 27,661
575,487 575,487
{20,000) (20,000
(162,794) (162,794)
392,693 392,693




SAMBS Hotels (Ahmedabad) Privaie Limited
™otes to the financial statenents for the year ended 31 March 2022
{AH amonnts are in Indian Rupees ('000), tarless othervise siated)

16

Non-current financial liabililies - Borrawings As at Agat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Term loans from bank (secured) (Refer "a’ below)” 618,562 330,238
Term fogan from instinution (secured) (Refer 'b* below) * 3,521,527 2,590,011
Less; Interest acerued bui not due on borrowings {refer note 24) (24,270% (11,407
Less: Current portion disclosed wnder Current financial lishilities - Borrawings (refer note 21} (637,534) {66,675}
3,478,285 3,442,167

* jncluding interest acerued but not due on term loan from financial institution amounting to INR 529,658 (31 March 2021 - INR 431,432}
1) Terms of Inan feosn hanls:

a} Term Loan

Banction Amounts

The Company has ubtained ierm loan facility of INR 430,000 (31 March 2021 - TNR 430,000)

Tha Company has obtained working capital term loan TNR 230,800 (31 March 2021 - INR 115,400}

Term of security

Term laan is secured by first exclusive charge over the hotel asset lacated at Ahmedabad (both lmmovabte properly amd movatle fixed assets) and charge on currene
and future receivables and cash flows af the hotel. Further, Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA) equivatent to principal and interest falling due in next 3 manths is to
be maintained at all times. The holding company has alse provided a cash shorfall undertaking,

Rate of Interest & term of Repayment
Interest rate applicable is MCLR plus margin of 1.65% ic. 10.830% p.a. during the year 31 March 2022, {3) March 2021 - 10.80% p.a).
The loan is repayable in 48 amortizing quarerly instalments starting from immediate quarter of first disbursement i.e. December 2007

b) For working capital loan :

Sanciion Amounts
The Company has obtained working capital loan facility of INR 230,800 (31 March 2021 - INR 115400}

Tranche 1

During the year ended 315t March 2021, the company had obtained working capital loan amounting to INR 115,400, (under ELCGS Scheme} (*Tranche 1"]
The rate of interest on the working capital term loan will be 9.25% p.a

The loan amount is repayable in 4% equal quarterly instalments after 1 year of moratorium from date of first disbursement i.e. 31 March 2021

Howaver, there is no moratorivm for interest. [t shall be payable at monthly intervals.

Traoche 2

During the year cuded 315t March 20232, the company had oblajned working capital loan amounting to TNR 115,400. (ender ELCGS Scheme} ["Tranche 27)

The rate of interest on the working capital term loan will be 3.25% pa.

The term loan amount is repayable in 48 equal quarterly instalments afier 2 year of moraterium from date of first disbursement i.e. 12 March 2022, However, there is nc
moraterium for interest. It shall be payable at manthly intervals.

Security

Working capital loan (Tranch | & 2) is secured by second charge over the holet asset located at Ahmedabad (both Immovable property and movable fixed assets) and
second charpe on current and future receivabtes and cash flows of the hotel. Further, second charge on Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA) equivalent to principal
and interest falling due in next 3 months is be maintained at alt times.



SAVIHI Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limiled
[Mores to the finapcial staternents for the yesr ended 31 March 2022

{41l amounts are in Indian Rupees (00}, unless otherwise stated)

2} Terms of Loan from insticution

a} Term L.oan
Sanction Amounts
The Company has ablained term loan fucility of INR 2,450,000 (31 March 2021 - INR 2,450,000 {rom FHE. Fininvest Private Limited

Term of security

Loans from Piramal is secured by the way of

(i) First ranking pari passu charge, over property of Sheraton, Hyderabad ("Hyderabad Project”) [under entity SAMHI Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited
{ii) First ranking pan passu charge, over Hyderabad Project receivables, Cument Account and Project Escrow Account

{iii} First ranking pari passu charpe by way of hypothecation of the Pramoter Escrow Accoun

{iv) Non-disposal undertaking from promater for 100% shares of SAMHI Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Lienite

(v} Demand promissory note execoted by the Company secuering the Loaa for the benefit of the Pirama! Capital and Housing Finance Limited

Information about the Company's exposure to intersst rate, foreign cumency and liquidity tisks is included in note 38

The Company did not have any continuing defaults as on the batance sheet date in the repayment of loans and interest. Therz have been no material loan covenant
defaults and there has been no intimation from the banks/ financial institutions tor recalfing any loan tacility

Rate of Interest & term of Repayment

The interest rate (acereal) for term loan from PHL Fininvest Private Limited is Piramal Prime Lending Rate (PPLR) less facility spread L.e. 14.05% p.a. (31 March 2021

- 14.05%). No interest payment is required for six months from the first disbursement date of loan. Thereafter, interest to be paid at a concessional raie of 8% from the
7th month to the 36th month. [nterest 10 be paid al PELR less facility spread from 37h Month Lill end of the tenure of the ioan, The term loan is repayable in 48
structured quarterly instalments commencing from Septemmber 2021, Accrued interest will be paid by the end of the 60th Mot from the first dishursement date of loan.

b} Working capital loan :
Sanction Amounts
The Company has obtained a working capital term loan INR 485,000 {31 March 2021 - INR 45,000]

Term of security
The security for the facilty shall rank second charge with the existing credit facilities provided by PHL Fininvest Private Limited with the second charge on the assets
financed under original facifity.

Rate of Interest & term of Repayment
The rate of interest on the working capital term loan will be 13% p.a.The term loan arnount is repayable in 48 cqual quarterly instalments after | year of moratorium
from date of first disbursement i.e. 4 March 2021, However, theze is no moratorinm for interest. {t shall be payable at monthly intervals,
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17 Non-currend linancial fiabililies - Lease liahilites As at As at
31 March 31 March

2022 2021
Lease liahilities {refer nate 43) 8,603 9,122
8,603 2,122

18 Nouo-current Anancial liabilities - Other

Security depuasits 14,842 31,230
34,842 35,230

1Y Non current Provisinns

Frovision for employee benefits

Gratuity (Refer note 300} 2,145 2,461
Compensated absences {Reter note30) 356 379
2,501 2,840

20 Other non-current Habilities

[neome received in advance 36,906 60,109
Advance rental 3,057 6,195
58,063 66,304

21 Current financial liabilities - Borrowings

Loan repayable on demand

- from hank {secured) * 52,326 49,768
Current maturities of bong-term borrowings {Refer nate 16} 637,534 66,675
682,860 116,443

The Company has availed bank overdraft facility from Standard Chartered Bank of TNR 120,000 (31 March 2021 - INR 180,000). Interest rate applicable is MCLR
plus margin of 1.65% i.¢. 14.75% p.a, as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021 - 10.80% p.2).

The overdraft facility is secered by first exehsive charge over the hotel asset located at Ahmedabad (both Immovable property and movable fixed assets) and charge
om cwrrent and future receivables and cash fiows of the hote],

The holding campany hag provided & cash shortfall undertaking,

22 Current financial liabilitics - Trade payables As at As at
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
Trade payables
- tota] putstanding dues of micro enterprises and small entetrprises 3,764 2,155
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smal] enterprises 192,978 154,434
196,742 166,789

a) Refer note 40 for Disclasures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)}
b3 Refer note 37 for dues to related parties
) The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed note 38
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Trade payables Agcing Schedule
Az at 31 March 2022

Outstanding for following periads from due datc of Eransaction

Parliculars ':&ur“d Less than i-2 years 1-3 years More than 3 Taoral
Expenses 1 year years
{ i) MSME - 3048 27 3 25 3,764
{ i) Others 24 557 87,751 29,202 48,532 2,796 192,978
As al 31 March 2013
Qutstznding for following periods from due date of transaction
Particulars Accrued | Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years Morc than 3 Tatal
Expenses 1 year years
(i) MSME - 1919 407 23 - 2,355
{ i) Others 30,875 81,208 49,052 3,295 - 164,434
Current financizl liabilities - Lease liabilities As at As af
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
Vease liabilities (refer note 43) 793 -
793 -
Current financial linbilifies - Others
Interest accrued but nat due on hacrevarings {Refer note 16) 24270 11,407
Employee related payables 7,002 13,920
Payable for capital assets 3,07 8,600
Security Deposit received 150 -
24,529 33,927
(rher corrent Hahilities
Advance from customers 7,720 4,883
Advance rental 3,613 3613
Statutory dues payahle 28,720 62,480
Tncome received in advance 31,203 3,203
43,265 74,179
Current provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity {refer noe 30) La14 1,115
Compensated absences (refer note 30) 211 287
1,425 1,402
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Revenye from operations
Sale of se1vices
- Room revennue

- Foad and beverage revenue
- Recreation and other services

- Praperty Management and space rentais

Countract Balances

Four the year ended
37 Mareh 2022

289,333
201,739
20,188
511,260
73,876
73,376
585,136

For the year ended
31 March 2021

119,579
10537
£,032
232,082
54.755
64,755
297,737

The cantract liabilities primaiily relate to the advence considerstion received from custemers for which revenues is resogaized when the parfommance obligation is over! services
delivered, Advance collection is recognised when payment is reecived belore the rclated performance ebligation is satisfied. This includes advances reccived from the custonser
tawards rooms/restawranthanguets. Revenue is recagnised once the performance obligation is met i.e. an room stay/ sale of food and beverage / provision of banquet sarvices,

The eontract asseds primarily relate to excess of revenue over invoicing (i.2. unbilled revenue).

Contract liabilities
- Advance from cuslumers

Contraet assets
- Unbilled revenus

(iher income

Interest ineome from finzocial assets

- bk deposits

- on loan to holding company
Amortisation of income received in advance
Govemnment grant

Provision no Innger required written back
Interest oo income Lax refund

Lease Income

Miscellanecus income

Rental income

Unwinding of discount on security deposit

Cost of materfals consumed
Conswmption of food and beverages
luvenrory at the beginning of the year

Add; Purchases
Inveniory at the end of the year

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and honus

Contribution to provident tund and other funds (refer 'a'

Compensated absences {refer 'b' below)
Gratuity expense (refer 'e' below)
Sraff walfare expenses

a. Delined Contribution plans

For the year ended
31 March 2022

7,720

16,082

For the year ended
31 March 2022

1,398
2,402
3,203

2291

3,687
197

13,178

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2022

5,529
41,220
{4277
63,172

For the year ended
31 March 2022

87,378
5,801
134
773
11,431

165,519

For the year ended
31 March 2021

4,883

4,417

For the year ended
31 March 2021

3,913

3203
128
2,745
1,970
3,108
T30
1,334
175
19,309

Faor the year ended
31 March 2021

3,027
28,555
{3.329)
31,053

For the year ended
31 March 2021

24,589
5,494
473
4,125
95,081

The Company’s employees provident fund scheme and employee state insurance scheme zre defined contibulian plans, A sum of ENR 5,801 (31 March 2021 -
EWE 5,4%4) has been recogaised as an expense in relalion to the schemes and shown under Employee henefits expense in pralitor loss. Also refer note 35,

b. Compensated ahsences

The Principal assumptions used in determining tie compensated abzences benefit obligation are as given belowr

Particulars

Dliscounting rate
Future salary increase

For the year ended
31 March 2022
a!{]

4497
3.50

For the yeay ended
31 March 2021
%

453
350
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¢ Defined Benefit Plan

The Ciounpany has a defiued hanefit gramity plan. Every employze who has cumpleted five yeure or more of service gets a pratuiry ou departure at 15 days salery
(last drawn salary) for each completed year of service, The seheme iz not funded.
The following tables summarise the coinponents of nel benefit expense recagnised in profit or loss and amounts recognised ia the Balance Sheat for the said plan:

a) Expense recognised in Profit ar Laoss
Partienlars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Far the year ended
31 March 2021

Currerd service cost 6l3 732
Interest cast 162 141
Expected rehirn on plan assefs - -
Total expenses recognised in the Statewment of profit and oss 775 73

b) Remeasuremants recognized direcily in other comprehensive incotne

Particulars
Met achuarial (gain)/loss recognized o the year
- changes 1o demographic assumplions

[For the yezr ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2621

- changes in finaneial assunmptions {27 Y
- changes in exparience adjustiments {319} 339
Amongt recognized in other comprehensive income (346} 376

¢) Change in present valne of bepefit obligation

Particalars

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2022

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2621

Tresent value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 1,574 2,798
Current service cost 613 732
Interest cost 142 [E1}
Actuarial {gain)loss {346) 376
Benefits paid (446) 4
Presen value of obligation as at the end of the year 3,53% 3,576

d) Amounnts ty be recognized in Balance sheet

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2621
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 3,359 3576
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -
Funded status - -
Net Iiability recoppized in the Balance Sheer {3,559 (3,576)
Mar-current 2,145 146!
Current L414 115
&) The Principal assumptions used in decermining the gratuity benefit ohligation are as given below

As al Asat
Particulars 3% March 2022 31 March 2021
% %

Discounting rate 4.97 4.53
Fuhure salary increass 350 5.50

The discount rate is generally based upon the marker yields available on Government bonds at the sccounting date with a term that matches that of Lhe liubilities.
The salary growth rate takes accoust of inflation, seniority, promation and other relevant factars on fong tecm basis.

Nemograplle assumptions

As at
31 Maych 2022

As at
31 Mareh 2421

Retivernent Age {years) 38 58
Mortality Table TALM (2012-3074% TALM (2012~
pLHEY]
Withdrawal Rate Yo %
Ages
Up to 30 Years f450) 6450
Trom 3L to 44 years 6550 £4/50
Above 44 years 64450 G4/50

(f) The Company best estimate of expense for the nexe year is INR 673 (31 darch 2021: [NR 801)
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iii. Sensitivity analysis

Izasonably possikle changes ak the reparting date 1o one of the refevant zcarial assumptions, holding other assinnptions coostant, woald have affected the Gefined benefit ohligalion
by the amounts shown below,

31 Warch 2022 31 March 2021
Increase * Decrease * Increase * Pecrease *
Dascount rate ((0L3% movement) {31y 32 {36) 37
Future saiary growth (0.5% movement) 3l (3 37 (36)

Although the analysis does oot take account of the fidl distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of e assamptions shown.
¥ Pasilive amounl represents increase in provision
* Megative ameunt represents decrease in provision

g) Maturity profile of defined benelit obligation

Asal Asgat
Year 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
April 2021- March 2022 - 1LELS
April 2022- March 2023 144 1,095
April 2023- March 2024 1,029 591
April 2024- March 2025 523 03
April 2025- March 2026 0 15t
April 1026- March 2{127 131 15
April 2027 dareh 2028 64 R
April 2027 onwards - 246
April 2028 onwards 138

1,350 1,576
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Finance costs

Interest expense on [inancial Liabilities carried at armortised cosl
- On security deposit received

- Termn Joan *

Baok chacges

Interest expense on delay in deposit of statutory dues

Interest on bease liabilities

Other finance cost

For the year ended
31 March 2122

For the vear ended
31 Mareh 2021

3,506 3,016

518,905 464,374
'}’ -

8,775 3,910

999 958

4,579 2,109

536,771 474,377

*Nel of inlerest income on loan funds amounting fo INR Nil (31 March 2021 - INR 38) made out of loan fonds.

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Tepreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment property
Depreciation of Right-to-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Other expenses

Repair and maintenance

- Building

- Machinery

- Others

Advertiserment and business promaotion
Commission

Conununication

Consumption of stores and supplies
Contractual labour

General administration expenses
Hatel running expenses

{nsurance

Legal and professional charges

Loss on foreign exchange [luctuation (net)
Management and incentive fees
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditors (refer below)
Powaer, fuel and water

Provision tor bad and doubtfu! debls
Rates and taxes

Rent expenses

Training expenses

Government grant wiitten off
Travelhing cxpenses

*Payment to auditors

As auditors
Statutory audit
Reimbursement of expenses
Other scrvices

Far the year ended
31 Mareh 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

164,280 176,941
3,081 3,081
2,181 2,181
3,259 3,259

172,801 185,462

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

6,805 3,680
17,191 22,305
10,684 3,943
20,692 19,115
16,374 7,197

1,099 1,109
25,193 8,414
21,706 10,235

5,039 5,174

4315 1,051

5,800 5,441
39,798 46,669

3,379 -
12,731 5,783

2,844 1,342

1,231 1,010
53,525 42,004

181 1,267
17,449 21,893
14,060 12,097
2,073 969
714 5,698

6,547 1,087

290,330 227,463

1,100 900

110 90
al 20
1,231 1,010
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Earnings per shave (EPS) For the vear ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Met loss attributable to equity shareholders (570,279) (696,390)
Weichted average number of equity shaves for calculation of basic EPS 2,164,946 2,164,946
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of diluied EPS 2,164,946 2,164,946
Nominal value of equity share (INR) 10 10
Basic eamning per share (INR) {26.34) (32.17)
Diluted earning per share {INR) {26.34) (32.17

* The outstanding potential equity shares have an anti-dilutive effect on EPS. Henee, the same have not been considered for calculation of Diluted
eamngs per share.

Contingent tiabilities and commiitments
Contingent liabilities

The Company had received an assessment order under Gujarat VAT Act, 2003 for financial year 2014-15 whereby an demand of [NR 1,708 has
been raised, The Company had deposited the aforesaid amount and had filed an appeal against the aforesaid arder. Subsequent to the year-end, the
Deputy State Tax Commissioner passed order ont 17 June 2022 in favar of the Company,

In February 2019, Supreme Court of India in its judgement clarified the applicability of allowances that should be considered to measure
obligations under Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952, The Company has been legally advised that there are interpretative challenges on the
application of judgement retrospectively and as such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past periods.

During the current year, the Company has recerved notices under section 148 of the Income-lax Acl, 196! for assessment year 2014-15 and 2015-
16 for initiating re-assessment proceedings against the Company. The management has filed its response against the notices, citing factual
inaccuracies in the notices. Management believes that based on the facts of the case and considering that the Company had significant unabsorbed
depreciation in the respective years, no liability is likely to devolve on the Company.
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Operating Scgmenis
The Holding Company's Chief Exezutive Officer has boen identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker {'CORM?Y, since e is responsible for all major decisions w.rt. the
preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, alliance, merger, acquisition and expansiun of any new facility. CODM has exandned the Company's

perfoimance from product and geagraphic perspective and has identified a single business segmant i.e. "Developing and running of hotels™, henve na specific disslosures have been
made,

a) Infarmation about products and services
Company primarily deats in one business numely "Developing and unning of hotels”, therefore product wise revenue disclosare is not applicabie,

b) Information abuut geographical areas
The Company provides services to customers in India, Further, there are no non-corrent assets located outside Tndia.

¢} Information about major customers (from external customers}
The Company does not derive revenue from noe customer which would amount to 14 per cent or more of the Company’s revenue.
Related party disclosures
a) Related party and nature of related party relationship where control exists:
Description ef relationship Mame of the Party
Holding Company SAMHI Hotels Limited (formerly known as SANHI Totels Private Limited)
b} Other relared parties with whorn transactions have taken place during the current and previous year:
Deseription of relationship Name of the Party
Fetlow subsidiary CASPLA [fotels Private Limited
Argon Hotels Private Limited
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

Bargue Hotels Privaie Limited
¢} Relaied party tramsaciions during the year:

. Holding Company Fellow Susidiary
Particulars

31 March 20422 31 March 2021 31 Marcch 2822 31 March 2021
Unsecured loan repaid
SAMHI Hotels Limited - 20,000 - -
Unsecured Joan given
SAMHI Hotels Limiled 132,500 - - -
Interest income an unsecured loan
SAMHYI Hotels Limited 2,402 - - -
Reimbursement af expenses
SAMHT Hatels Limited 1,020 300 - -
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited - - 1,812 2442
Arpon Hotels Private Limited - - 393 639
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited - - 4,503 324
Cozt allocation from Holding Company
SAMHI Hotels Limited 21,472 28,618 - -

In addition to ransactions menfionad above:

- there is a pledge over shares of fellow subsidiary i.e., SAMHI IV Business Hotels Private Limited which arc held and owned by the Holding Comipany in respect of borrowings
frem hank/financial institction.

- the Holding Company has given a guarantes for refund of professinnal fee t Starwood Hotel and Resorts India Private Limited (" the operator) in case of sancetlation of the
{parating Services agrecment with the operator.

- the Holding Compuny has provided an undertaking on behalf of the Company in respect of loans obtained from Bank/financial institation.

- refer note 16 in vespect of security pravided by {ellow subsidiavies for foans from PHL Finimvest Private Timbed.

- the Company has provided security of Freshald land (Hyderabad property) on behatf of the Holding Company in respect of borrowings from Piramal Capital and Housing Finanee
Limited amounting to Rs. 850,000 and 750.000.
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dy Related party balances qutstanding at year end:

Particnlars

Hotding Company

Fellow Susidiary

31 March 222

31 March 2021

31 Mlarch 2022 31 March 2021

Egquity component of interest free loans {net of tax)

3AMHI Hotels Limited

302,603

392,653

Equity component of concesslonal overdraft facility

SAMHI Hotels Limited

4,896

4,856

‘Trade payahles

SAMHI Hatels Limited

18,531

CASFEA Hotels Private Limited

. 737

Argon Hotels Private Limiled

- 194

SAMHI IV Business Hotels Private Limiled

468 350

Trade receivables

SAMHI Hotels Limited

CASPIA Hutels Povate Limited

1,119 4,338

Argon Hotels Private Limited

1,547 1,994

SAWMIN FV Business Hotels Privare Limited

Barque Hotels Private Limited

Other current assets

SAMIH Hatels Limited

31,768

Linsecured loan given

SAMHI Hotels Limited

134,662

The trangactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances ai the yearend are unsecured and

settlermient o¢gurs in cash.

Feor the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment

is undertalen at each reporting period.
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32  Financial instrumenss — Fair values and risk managemant
A) Financial instruments hy eategory and Giir value
The below table summarizes che judgements and estimotes made in determining he fait valuss of the finaacial instouments that are {g) vecognised snd messured af feir value and (h) measared M

amartised cost and for which f2ir values are dizclosed in the financial slafements. To pravide an indicarion abowt the reliability of the inputs used i determining fair value, the Company has
classified its financial jnstrunents into the theee Jevels preseribed under the accounting standard,

31 March 2012
Parficulars Fair Value Threogh Fair Value Through
Level of Higrarchy Profit and Foss Other Comprehensive Amertised Cost
{FVTFL) Tncome (EVTOCT
Non-current
Others - - 30,51
Current
Trade reecivables - - 53861
Casl: and cash equivalents - - 109,607
Loang - - 134,662
Others - - 31,257
Total financial assets - - 350,858
|
Non-current
Bormowings 2 - - 3,478.2838
Lease liahjlities - - 2,603
Othets - - 34842
Current
Bomowings 2 - - HR9.860
Trudde payables - - 196,742
Lcasc liabilities - - 753
Qthets - - 34,529
Tolal financiai liabilities - - 4,443,654
31 March 2021
Partieuiars Fair Value Through Falr Value Through
Level of Hievarchy Profit and Loss Other Comprehensive Amaortised Cost
{F¥TEL} Income (FYTOCL
Financial assets
Nan-currere
Onhers - - 44071
Current
Trade racejvables - - 51,747
Cash and eash equivalenls - - 52,150
Others - - 25046
Total financial assets ] - - 183043
'ﬁl}ll‘l-l‘.lll'l‘el‘ll
Bamrowings 2 - - 3442167
Lease labilities - - 9122
Others - - 31.230
Current
Bamowings 2 - - 116,443
Trade payables - - 166,789
Others - - 33,927
Total flnanclal liabilities - - 1,790,678

A) Financial ingtruments by category and fair value {continued)

Einancial assets and lfabilities measured at fair value - recurving fair valug mensurements
Asat Agat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Binancial assets and Uabllitles measured at amortised cast - Feir value measnrements

Financial Asscts

Mor-currenl financial assets - Security deposits (Level 2) 0315 19827
Financial Liabilites

{Other non-current financial liahilities - Secoriny deposit received (Level 23 igong 3,310
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The fuir value of wade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, otier bank balances, othes curres firancial assets, current laans, current borrowings, wads payables and other current financial
lizkilities approximate thaiy carmying amaounts, due to their shove-tenm narure,

Iaterest rates on nen-currend borrowings (from bank) are equivalent to the macket rate. Such borrowings arc contracted at Noaring rates and rates are res=t 8l shorointerals, Accordingly, the
carrying value of such bomowings approximates fair valuc.

Fair valuz of bank deposits included in aon-cwrent other fnaneial assets aod loan 1o subsidiary included (o non-cwrent Joans are equivalant to their sairying ameunt, as the interest rate on
them is equivatent to market rate.

The campany has nat disclased the faie valuss of non-careenr loals because their careying amounts ars a 2asonable approximation of fair vahues.

B) Measurcment of fair values

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

Level 1: Lewel | hisrarchy includes financial instnunents measured wsing quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that bave quated price, The
fair value of all equity instruments (including honds) which are traded in the stack exchanges (s valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instrmaenrs that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded boads, over-the eounter derivarives) is determined using valuation teclniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as liktle as possible on cntity-spetific estimates. If all sipnificant inputs required w fair value 2n instrumenl are phservable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3; If one or mare of the significant impuls is not hased on observable mnarket dula, the instrunend ts incladed in level 3.

There have bezn no valuations of financia! instruments under Level 2.
There hava been no transfars in either dirgction for the years ended 31 darch 2022 and 31 barch 2021,
The Company’s policy is to vecognise wansters o and transfers out of fair valus hizrarchy lovels as at the cod of the reporting year.

Valuation technigue vsed to determine fair value

Specific valuation technique used to value financial instrumients include:

- the Fair values for security depasits ware caleulated based oo cash flows discounted using curment lending rate.
- the use of quoted market prices (MAV) on valuation of cwrent investments

Details of significant unebservable inputs far measerement el fair values
Nan-current loans - Risk adjusted discount rate

Oy Fi ial risk £ t

Risk manzgement framewark
The Company's activities expose it to 2 varicty of financial risks: market dsk (including forelgn exchange dsk and interest vate risk), credid visk and biquidicy risk.
The Holding Company™s chief financial officer under the directions of the board of divectors implements financial risk managemewt policies acrass the Company. The Company's sk

management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set approprate fsk limits and condenls, to manitor rsks and adberence ta limits in order to
minimize he financial impact of sueh risks, Tle risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities,

i. Credit risk
Credil risk is the risk of financial Juss to the Company il a customer or counterparty to a linancial instrument Fails to meet its coniractual okligalions. The carrying amaounl of firaucial assels
represent the maximuon credit risk exposie, The Company has credit policies in place and the exposuares to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

To cater to the credit dsk for balances with banks/financial institutions and investment in mutual funds, onty bigh rated banks/institutions and mutual funds are accepted,

The Company has given secuity deposits to Government depaniments. Further, the Company has recognised government grant recoverable in respect of export incentivas. The Company
does not expect any default fiom these parties and aceovdingly the sk of default is negligible or oil.

In respect of eredit exposures from trade receivablestunbilled revenue, the Company has policies in place to ensurc that sales oo eredil withoat collateral are made principalby lo travel ugents
and corporate companies wirh an appropriale credit histary, Sales o other customers are made in cash or by eredil cards.

The Company estahdishes an allowance for impaitment that represeits s expected credit losses in vespect of rade receivables. The managemeant uscs a simplified appraach for the purpase

af camputation of expected credit loss for trads receivables, In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according Lo their eredit eharactedstics, including whether they are an
individual or legal entity, their geographica) ocation, industry and existence of previous financial difficulties, if any.

During the period, the Company has made oo write-ofls of trade receivabies,

Reconciliation of toss allowance provision

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Opening halance 8,034 7,667
Changes in loss allowznee 131 1,267
Closing balance 0,115 8,934

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumpiions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to (he Impainnent cabzulation, based en the Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimaces at the end of each
reporting perisd.



SARIN] Flolels {Almedalisd) Trlvate Limited
Motes to the Bnancial statemens for tie vear ended 33 Mareh 2022
L et gre In Fedian Rupoes (000, wadees odes i

it stateod)

1i Liguidity risk

The Campary”s appranclt foanagiog liguidity 510 eeauce, 55 B as possible, that 38 will hive sufficival Lguidin e necr s lialilices wiizn they are dus, wadds Bollosenzl and stressed conditions,
@) Exposure lo liguidily duk

The following ave the reraining contmeingl mataities of Grancial lizbilizizs a1 ths vepuidiog date, The ameunts we moss amd andiseaanied:

Contraciual eash Naws

31 March 2027 Currying amount Told -1 year 1-lyears  LSyears More thans
years

Lan - devivaive Inamclal Lzbilite

Nun-citrent burrawings 3 ATE RS 1,608,150 S TISIE &9u53 2,079,103

Man-eurrent Lease Liabilitias 2403 31,619 - 794 2458 28.167

{ither non-current financial Habilies 34,R42 34,542 - 30,034 1,808 -

Current bonewings 589 360 589,360 689,860 - - -

Current L gase Liabilinies 793 a3 7493 - -

Trads payubles 156,542 196,542 196,742 - -

Onher current financiad labilities 34,329 34 520 14,528 - - -
443 554 4,486,535 921,924 75,339 TET000  2i07.272

Contracnad cash Aows
31 tiarch 2021 Carrying amotni Taotal Oud year T-i1years 2-3vears Morgthan i
years

Mon-derivative financial Bubilitics

Mon-clbrent bomowings* 3442067 3,464,830 B L1450 1043932 2301408

tlon-current Lease Liabilities G122 12137 115 T3y 2539 29079

(Mther non-cormzat finaneial labilities 11230 31,230 - 624 3,608 .

Current buriowings Ila443 115,443 116443 - - -

Trade payalies 166,739 166,789 166,754 . N

Olher turrent financial liabilites 134017 k927 33,927 - - -
3,799,678 3046356 317,884 118,908 1.072.07T7 2333447

* Thee Ustails dizclosed are sfier considaring {he impact nisarorinm with reference to RO cincular LOR Mo BPBC.A7/20.04.048 2019-20 dured 27 March 2020 and DOR Mo BF.EC,71/2] 04 048/2019-20 d1ted 23 by
2020 for the peried | iareh 2020 m 21 August 2020,

tb} Finaneing arrangements

The campany had uccess ta the fllowing undrawn borawing facilids a1 the end of the reporting pertod:
31 March 31 March

Flnating rate

Eevolving cradit faeilily Gom institution - 448000 i
Bank owverdratt and other favilicies 105,154 115,832 i
105,154 5gd §iz :

—_— v

1. darket risk
The Company is expased o markel zick pritarily relating to the risk of chinges in markel prices. such as fongign exchungs mics and interest rtes, that will affect the Company's expense or e vales o 115 Roldings of

tinaneial instruzants.

Currency risk

The Campany's expasere 0 {oreign sumency tsk is on aecount of puyables on sceount af imponts of capital gonds, farcign cimeney | ings and ather sxpenditg in jees vlber than the fmetional comency of the
Company.

Euposure to curreacy risk
The Compasy's exposure Lo (breign coreney risk 4l the end ol the raporing period e as 1bllows:

11 March 2022 Currency Amaunt [0 farelan INR in
curceny {ln thausand)  ¢thousand

Fnancial liabilitivs

Trade payables usD 1445 109,545

3 March 2021

Currgncy Amount io fareign MR in

curreny (in thousand)  thouszml
Finzncizl Balilities

Trade payables usp 425 65025

Sensltvity anolysis

A ressaniehly possible sirenimhening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against forzizn curency at year end would have wifested the ol fnancial insouments 4 inated In fredgn curreney and affected equity
and profit o7 foss by the amounts skann below. Fhis analysis assuraes thut all other variables, in partioular interest mates, remnin constant sod ignares any impact of forecast sales ond porchasss,

{Pronn] /loss Equity, net af tax
Effectio INR b1 hj Weakenj 5 hmi: Weakening
31 Rareh 2012
1%, movement
LIS 1,095 (1,093} 210 (5100
1,003 {1,05%) 524 (830)
{Profir) i lass Equity, nec of fax
Eifect in INR . b i Weakening Lr=nugthninsg W 2

3 March 2021

1% movement

usn L1 (3 k] {3
’ . L0 (6B =08 {58Y)
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I s e u Sedin Gupses PO Jdves coherwine sieuss)
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Instarest raide risk

Ingereil vute visk is thee risk thut the fic value or fulure cush Jowes ofa Teaocial deteament wilt fueloste bzeavse of cherges n markzt ietecest mies. The Compaoy's enpasdre to e dsk ol chinges in odabel bateresl s relales

rrimarily i the Campany”™s berrowings with floating intaresr rates,

Lxpusore Lo interesd rate rish

The witerest rate prable of b Cempays wlerese-bearing fiaanial istrume=eats is 15 folows:

Mominal amaunl

31 March 2022 31 March
2021
Fived-rate instruments
Finazeial assels - bank depasits 4,505 30,329
4,905 0429
Eftect of inw1<sl rate svaps - -
4,905 30,829
Warlable-rate Instruments
Finaveial liabililies - Term loans Fam hanks akg.562 530,138
Finarcial lizbililies - Term Toan ! Revolving eredit facitily Fom institulinns 33201,537 0 2,990,001
Finareial babilities - Cash credit and ovevdraft facifities fom bavk 52,32 +3.708
4,102,415 3,570,017
Total 4,197,320 3,600,846

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate insiruments

The Company docs nal accoun far gy fixed-rate financial 155215 or fngncial Fabililizs a1 fir value theaugh profil ar boss, Therafore, a chanae in mterest 1ales al the reporiing data would not affec) profil or lozs.

Fair value sensidivity an bank depasils has sot been disclosed as inlerest 1ate on such depasits is 2quivalant Lo nwarket eate,

Sensilivity analysts fer yariable-raie instrumenis

A veasundbly possitle <lange oF 100 basis pobus ik Laer et rates i che veporting dave would bave bieased (decreasel) eyuity and profii or Juss by the anounts shoven bloss, This analysis assumes that wll vibes variables, resein

CONSLant.

{Prafit) { loss

Equity, net of tax

100 bp increase 108 bp decrease 100 bp increase 140 bp
deereate
31 March 2022
Financial linbilities 37,852 (37,550 37,552 (37,3500
37,552 [37,552) 37,552 {31550
31 March 2021
Firaneial liabilitics 14,136 (14,356) 4356 (34,335)
34,356 (34,356) 34,356 (34.356}

Copital Management

Tre Company's pelicy is ta mainTain A Arong capilal hase 50 & to mointam investor, creditar and market eanfidence ard ta sustain fmre development aF the husiness.
Tit Board af direciors seehs 1o maintain o balance hetweaen the bighar rariens thel might be potsible with higher levels of horrowing and the adveztages and security aferded by o saund capilal positian.

The Company monilor: capital using loan 1o value (LTY) method Lo ansuce tha Wha loan o value does not incizase beyond 63% an any given repoiting dae 11 @ group level.

As u purt af is capital manegement policy, U Company ¢nsures complisnce with all covenants and cther capital requirements reluted to regulatary or contructual gbligztions of malerial o

oote 4|

i the Company, Also refer



SAATHI Hotels (Almedabad) Privaie Limiced
Motes to the financial statemenis for the yerr ended 31 Marcl 2022
(A4l amolns are i Rudian Rupeer (000), nmless othenvise stated;

40 Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medien Enterprises Development Act, 2066 (MSMED) As ac Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 1021

Dmes to micra end small soppliers

The amounts remaining unpaid o mico and smal} suppdicrs as at the cnd of the year
Principal 3,452 2,355
Interesl 58

The amaunts of the payments made to micrn and small supplicrs beyond 1he appointed day during cach

The amonnt of intecest paid under the act beyond the appointed day during the year -

The amount of interest due and payabte for the period of debay io making payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointad 54 -
day dvring the yearh but without adding the interest spaeified under MSMED Act, 2004,
The ameuat of interest acermed and remajoing wnpaid at the end of each accounling year, and 11z -

The amount of further interest remaining die and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interast dues as - -
above are actually paid to the small entezprise for the parpose of disallowanee as a deductible expenditure under the Act

The managernent has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services o the Company and which quatity under the definition of micra and small enterprises, as
defined under biero, Small and Mediumn Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMEDY. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amaunts payable to such enterprises as at 3!
March 2022 and 31 Mareh 2021 hag been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Comparty.

41 Tmapact of COVID-19 pandemiz {including going concern)
The Company is facing liquidity ehallenges which bave been accenroaied by unceriainty due to COVID-19. The Company has negative net wotth of Rs. 983,703 as al 31 March
20272, incurred a net loss of INR 570,279 during the year ended 31 Mareh 2022 and, as of that date, the Conpany’s currant tizbilitiss exceeded its coment assets by TNR 579,585, As
on 31 March 2022, the Company has been largely funded by loans fram banks & financial institutions and there are repayments of INR 637,534 dee within 12 manths of the halance
sheet date. The Company has cash and bank kalance of TNR 109,607 with it as on 31 Barch 2022 which will assist for meeting its shart term labilities for next 12 months, The
business of the Company was impacted during the year on account of $OVID-19 and consequent |ockdowns in several states across the coantry.

With increased vaccinalions and consequent reduction in number of cases and easing of all vestrictions, the Company has witnessed a recovery. Starting from Q3 FY 2022, the
Company has demonsirated improved business performance in terms of Average Room Revenue (ARR) and Orccupancy levels, ARR and Occupancy levels in Q1 FY 2023 have
reached MR 6,807 and 3% m Sheraton Hyderabad and TNE 3 809 and ¥6% in Four Paints by Sheratan, Ahmedabad respectively. The Company has continned financial and
operatinnal suppoit provided o the Company by SAMHT Hotels Limited (the holding conpany’, has projected o penemte profits fam s operations and 15 expecting necessary
approvals basis applicalion to lenders under Emergency Credit Line Guaranzee Scheme (“ECLGS™).

The Company has assessed the possible impaet of COVID-19 in preparalion of the financial striements, incheding but not limited 1o its assessment of liquidity and going concem
assumption, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets and impact on revenues and costs. The Company has considered internal and extemal sources of information
and has performed sensitiviry analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates, expects 1 vecover tie canying amount of these assets. The impact of COVID- 19 may
be different from Lhat estimated as at the date of approval of these financial staternents and the Company will centinue to closely monitar zny matenial changes fo future econoimic
conditiens.

In view ol the above, the management and the Board of Directors believe that the Company will be able 1o mect all its contractual obligations and liahilitics a3 and when they fall
due in near futwee and accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a peing concern basis,

42 During the year, 3AMHI Hatels Limited {the Holding Company} has allocated expenses amounting TSR 21,472 (31 March 2021 - INR 28,618) as Company™s share of projest
txpenses and other cost incurred,

43 Lease disclosures
As fessor
The Company bhad adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting periad 1 April 2019 and applied the standavd to its lcases wsing modified retrospective approach, with the

comulative sffect of applying the standard, recognised cn the date of the initial application {§ Apeil 2019), Aceardingly, the Ceenpany bas not restated the comparative information.
The Company has reclassified its leaschold buildings amounting 1o TNR. 105,264 as right-nfuse assers.

The impact on the Staternent of Proflt and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 (s as below:

Particulars For the year ended | For the
31 March 2021 31 March
Rent lowered by 715 £90.00
Diepreciation 1s higher by 2,181 2,181.00
Finance cosi is higher by 90% 958.00
Lass before tax is lower by {2,455) (2,459
The talal cash outflow for leases during the year 725 &Y




SANMHI Hotels (Ahmedubuad) Private Limited
Motes ta the Tinaneial statements for the year ended 31 3arch 2032
(AN qmenons are in tadicn Rrpees (O00), wnlers otharwidse staicd)

The Company has discounted lease payments using the applicable inciemental boirowing rale us al | Apeil 2020, which is 10.8% fur

Delails ol renl expenses

As at As at
Parteolars
31 harch 2022 11 March
Expenses relating to low value and short term Jeases 1 E
Expenses relating to variable Joase payments 14,060 12,097

The fallowing table presents a marrity analysis of expected undisconted cash flows for lease Hab;

ilities as on 31

. As al Ax al
Particulars
31 March 2022 A1 March
0-1 year 793 725
1-2 years 94 0d
2-5 years 2,634 2,539
More than 5 years 28,147 29,079
Total Lease payments 32412 33,137
Tl reconciiation of leass lisbilities is a3 Follows:
Particulars Asat Asal
31 March 2022 31 Mareh
Balance as atr | April 2021 9,121 -
Additions! Adjustmenis 3,844
Amounts recognized in stateinens of prolie und loss as interest expense 959 968
Paymeni af lease liahilities {725) (650}
RBalance as at 3F March 2022 {Rtefer Note 18 and 223 9,395 9,122

Masch 2022:

The leases enlered by the Carnpany are leng term in natwie and the underlying ieased properiies are being used as affices,

Aslessor

The Compary has undertaken fil-outs work al its property located in Hyderabad and provided (ke same on Bnance fease to selected compandes for a period of 5 years, These leases have
heen accounted for a5 finance Jeases. Future minimur lease payments {MLP) under finance leases with the present value of the net MLP are as foliows:

Not later fian ane year

Later than one year and not later than five years
Later Lhan five years

Total minimum lease paymaenis

Less: Amouats representing unearned finance income

Present vatue of minimura lease payments

4

e

Investment praperty disclosures

As ak
3 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Present yalye of Minftum lease Present value of

MLP paymenis MLP
14,741 14,104 V1,B13
5,660 14,954 23402
13,401 39,058 35,216
£3.842) -
23,401 35,216 A5.216

(1) Refer notz 43 tar fature minimum lease payments under non-vancellable operating leascs in respect of inveshmant proparty given on lease,

(i) The fair value of investmend propesty as al 31 March 2022 smounts to BNE 819,76 131 March 202 |- INR 728,574 based on discounted cash fow method is classified as a level 3
fuir valuz in the fair value hisrarghy dus tu the inclusion of soe or mure unobservable inpuls. There has been no change in the valuation technique as comparad Lo previous years.

{iif) Information regarding income and expenditare of investment proporty

Rental and maintenance income deyived fram invastrent property
Less: Dircel aperaling expenses generating remtal income

Profit adzing trom Investmant propetty before depreciation and indirect expenses

31 March 2021
64,735
(15,610
53,145

{iv} The Company has oo restriciions on the realisability of investmeant properly or the remittance of incame and proceeds of disposal.



SANHI Hotls (Ahmedabad) Prlivate Limited
Téoles ta the financial statements for the year ended 3| ilarch 2022
Al amowmts are in fucian Bupees (000), anfers arberioe sieded)

45 Mew standards and indecpretations, nod yet adopled

Recent prencuncements Miresiy of Conpolate A s (“MCA") potifies new standard or amendme ils 10 2he existing stondards under Cnropanics { b
2022, MCA amended die Companizs (Jndisa Aceonniicg Standirdsy Amendmient Rules, 2022, applizable from April bst, 022, 55 belowe

an Aceouhting Siandardsy Rules as issued fom time 1o ume. On 23 Much

Ind A% 103 - Reference to Ceneapius] Frameworl The amendments specify that to qualify for reecgaition as par of appl}m:‘, the acquistion method, the identifiable age2ls acquired and labilities sssomed must rzer |
definitions of ussets wd lighilities in ths Conceptual Framewark for Finaneial Reporing under Indian Acczanting Standards (0 | Framewarky issued by s institate of Chartered Accoonlants af india ar the aequisiliun

dare, These chasipes do wor signifecantdy chiange the cequirgments of Ind AS 103, The Cumpany does not expent the anzendmant o ave any impaed in G finencial slatemenis.

Ind A5 14§ - Procesds before infended wse: The amendmenss mainly prohikit an catity from dedweting from 1he cast of property, plant and equipment anouits received Lo solling ilens produced while
prepacing e assel for iis inended use. kastesd, an eatity will recognise such sales praceeds aod relotzd cost fn profit or boss, The Company dost aot axpest the améndmenls 1a have any impac! in ils reco)
plagl and eqaipment in i Mancial sialement;.

the eqmpany iz
o of it property,

Ird AS 37 - Oneraus Contrasts - Costs of Fulfilllag a Conirace The amendmants specify thatthe “eegt of Lulfilling’ a cantract compeisss the "cosis il sslats directly 1o he contrct’. Casts that velue direzily to a cantrcl
iy itler be i bl cests of [Wfilling thal contmet (examplss would be deet uhour, materials) or an allreation af ather cosis tha relate directly 1o Tullitling contmcis. The d i jatly a cluilicdlion and Uie
Company doet 2ol expect (e d ta hiave any signi npract Jen ils financiad stalements.

Indd AS 108 - Annual Ienprovessents to Ind A8 (2021): The emendment clarifics which faes an enfiy includes wher iLapplizs the 10 pereent’ fsstof Ind A5 V0B in assessing whetlier to derecogrise a financial Fabiliy, The
Cumpany does nut expzcl dee arnetdment to havs any significant impagt in iG finuncial statements.

Tnd A5 [04 - Anneal Improvenents to Ind AS (2021): The d remove the ill jon af Ui reiml ol leaggigld | b 12 Tezzor in order Lo resolve any poteniial confusion regarding the
ugatmenl of lease incantives thal mizhy arise Secanse of how l2ase inednlives were dezeritad in that illustation, e Conpany do<s ol expen.t U2 wrnzabdmient ko have avy signiGeanc impaet in is financial slatemane,

Ralio Analvsis and it elements

Ralig I imes!%a Mumerator 1H] 3 March 227 3 Mlareh 2021
(2} Curmenl Ratio in limes Cwrene Assals Curren Lighilities .49 045
(b1 D2bi-Equily Raliv in limes Toual Borrowlnas Talal equity (4.21) (8,500
{cp Deln Service Coverage Ratin ul times Profiv! {Lozs) hefnrz finnnee vosr,  Miterest Paymeats + Prncipal 021 [
depreeiztion, amenisation and 11 Repayments
{1y Retum o Equiry Ratia in % Looss far The year Averape Total eguity 0.8l 12,13
(&} lovéntory tumover rtio in Timas Cust of poods sold Averase Invenlory A N
(f) Trada Reccivables lurrover ratio in limes Revenue lrom epaiations Averupe Trade Reesjvables 1108 391
(¢} Trade payables Umaver ratio in dimes Cosl of wateriuls vonsumed + Ouher Averape Trade Payahbles 1. (R0
EXAENses
(b3 Met copital tumaver tatio in Gmes Revenue from operations Average Cureeni asicts - Average 1h47 11.66]
Current Liubilities
(i} Kel pralir rlic in % Lass For the year Revenue fram opoelliong 7465 -133.89%
{j} Retwmn an Capilal empleyed in % Lnss befor: finance eosts and taxes Tangisle Net Waorth + Total -1.05% -7408%
Burrawings
[k} Belurn on inveslment in % Intcrest (Finance lnccme) Invesiment A ™A

Explanadens to varance in Rodios:

Debt-Equity Ralig Iln_r:mm due to reduction in other equily as resull of logses

Erchr Service Coverage Ralis Hatio Jas improved due Lo increase in prolit belbre Minunce cosl, deprecinlion, amerisalion aad
Fetum on Equiry Ratin Rapum on equity clia has di d due 1o losses leading 10 desrétse in sharehalder's equity
Trade Receivables fumover mlio i i due o jperense in revenue from operations

[Met profit bl . d due 3o imp in business activity during 1he weqr

Fetwin on Capial erployed TRx:lu.m o0 capital empl imp ] with impro i ing margins during the year.

The Company hus net presenied Me following miics dee lo the reasons given below;
{21 baveniony uhmever miia: sinee the Campany habds inveniary of Devarages meluding liguor whose value is inssgeilien: compared Lo Uig felal assets
(b Return o imvestments: simee 1he Company invests saples lemporeey funds in shart term hank deposils and she income generued i insgnilieant W el lumavel



SanHL tateis (Ahanedalad) Privace Limited
“oles ta the finunciak statements fur the year eaded 31 iureh 2022
£l amaums are i Jndian Rupecrs £000), wordess atheniie vimed
47 Bther statutacy Infarmacon
i The Company dees not lidve iy Bawami progany, where eny proceccing has been initioted o pending against the Company o hofdiep wy Benani prapeely.

1#3) The Compary do cot liatve any GaEactions with companies sruck off under s2cticn 220 of Compazics Act 2013

[iif} 2 he Company do con have any eharges ar sadsfaction which is yel o be registered wilh Regisirar of Companies {ROC) beyand 1be starutary periad.

[iv]) The Company bave ot ieaded or invesied in Crypla zurrenay or Viuzl Cureecey duriug the Nnanzial y=a,

[v] K Fumils e been advanced ¢ ‘ganed or invested {either flom borrowed funds or share puemiun or sy other sources o king of fends) by the Commpuny 1a or in ary ether pe.son(s) of entitgisz), in2tuding fevcign entivies  Intermerd-aries™)
wills the wndesstanding, whather recorded in ~wrifing or athavwise, ) the Tatermedinry shall lend or inves! in pady i€eatified by or on behalf of Lhe Company (Ullimabe Baaeheivizsg). The Company hus nal received any fund from 2~ pirly{z)

(Funding Pary) with ke undzrslanding Ml e Compizy stall whelhar, dueesly o indicectby lepd oe invest in athey persons o entities identifizd by or on Lebalf of vne Campany {1t flttmate Beneficiaries™)or provide any guaanisa, seaurity o (e
lik:z on kehal[ of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

[vi) The Company has not entered folo eny such Usnsactiue Wiizh is not recurded Jo e books oF aczowus thal bus been sorrendered or gisclased as ncome duiing 1he y2ar Li 1he 7% nssessmants under the Inzome Tae Act, E960 (such az, seurch
or swrvgy of ary othse relevant provisions of the hieome Tax Act, 1901

{wii) The Company has no: eranled any loans or advances in (he nalure of loans ta pramelers, ditectars, KidPs and the relaled pocties {us defined under Compunies Ay, 2013) aither savernlly or jointby with amy oler persen thalars tepayable o

demand or withaut specifying any wermg o peried of vepayment

{xifi) The Company has used Lhe bomowings rom barks i he spacific papase o which it was aken.

{ix) The Company hos rolbeen declared o wiful defiultes by any boak o other lender (25 defimed wnder the Companics Act, 20033, in accordance wil the puidelings an wilful dv taultecs.

48 LIst of Immovable properries pat leld in the name of the Company

Ai at 3] darch 2032

Relevant line Jtem in the Balanee Sheet

Dreseriprien of propecty

Gross carrylng value
{Rs. Ln Thowsands}

Whether tille deed halder js a
profater director director or
relative il pramaterfdirector ar
cmpleyer of promaterfdirector

Hetik In che name of

Ireaperry held
since which
date

Kuasan for not being held in the
name of che company

Propecty. plant and equipment - Freehold Lund

Suls Phot Nu A of Fiul
Fiot Me. 378 of Town
Flawning Schene No.
325 fvarded] of
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Totuke Clty, District
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17 March 2006

TE:2 sale deed of band 35 in the rage
nf Setkar Realties Pyt Lid., erstwhilel
vame of e Company which wis
changed w0 Royal Orehid Alimedabad
Privie  Limited and  after  that
SANSHI Hate's {Ahmedobad) Privale
Limited.

Frgal ecatlizale ol incorpodlioo
conscquent to chagpe af name dated
14 May 2010 and 16 August 2811
respectively  was  issued by the
Rt of 1l dmianall
(Capiral Terrilory of Gujarat.

As at 31 March 2021

Retevant Jine drem in the Balance Shect
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Sross carrying vahre

‘Whether title deed holder [s 2
prometerdlrector,dlvector or
relative il promateridirector ar
emplayee of promotec/idirector

Huld in (ke nume of

Froperty held
Shece whicl
date

Reasan for nat heing held in the
name of the compuiny

Property, plant and ¢quipment - Frechold Land

Sub Flot f¥o.4 of Final
Plol Mo, 578 of Tawn
Planning Scheme Ma,
345 (vaied) of
Ahmedakad. Situoled at
tdonje Chhuduvad,
Taluka City, [ristret
ARmadabad.

135000

ko

Sarkar Realtizs Pro
Lid.

17 idench 06

The sale deed of land iz in the name
of Satkar Realties Bye. L., ersbylhilel
naze of the Company which wag
clianiged 19 Royzt Quehid Ahmedubad
Prival:  Limited and  afier 1l
SARHL Hetel: {Abmedubad) Privaty|
Limited.

Fresh cemifiens of  inenrportion
epnsequent o changs of neme dated|
14 May 2010 and 16 Auguil 2012
respactively  was  issued by Lhe
Repisizer of Companics, Natinna)
{Capital Territory of Gujarar.

The arigina title deeds of all immovable properties L undet lisi with bank fr the lnan (acililics availed by the Compeny. Therzfore, we couid aolL verily thoss tite deeds and have not received independent confirmation From bark.




SAMHI Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Nates o the financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2022
fAN amews are in Indign Rupees ('000), inless othenvize stated)

4% Change in classification

{iy Pursnant 1o amendment in Schedule 11 to the Companies Acl, 2013, effective fram 1 April 2021, the Compaay has modified the classification of sceurity deposits from
"Loans" to "Oliers” in financial assets and cumemnt matirity of borrowings from "Others” to “Borrowings” ia current financial Nabilities, Comparative armounts io the nokes o

(e linuncial statenzents were reclassified for consiztency.

As per earlier reported

Non current assefs
Financlal asscts
Loans

{Others

Cuorrent assets
Financizl assets
Lodns

Others

Financial liahilities

Borrowings
Others

19,820
24,259

268
24477

45,748
100,602

Revised classification Difference
- 19,820
44071 {£9,B20)
- 568
25,046 (569
148,443 {66.675)
33929 66,675

{ii) The previvus year's figures have been re-groupediieclassified, where neceasary to conform to curvent year's classificarion,

Ag per onr repard of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Charrered decoumtams
1CAI Firm Registration No.: 100248WAW-100022

5

Vikeam Adveii”
Pariner
Membership No.: 091765

Place: New Delhi
Dale: 20 September 2022

Faor and on behalf of Board of Diresiors of
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limite

Directar
DIN: 06813081

Place: Guragram
Date: 23 September 2022

DIN: 03563467

Place: Gurugram
Bate: 20 September 2022




